
 

 

 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 

Date: Monday 7th April, 2025 
Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: Mandela Room 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
1.   Welcome and Fire Evacuation Procedure 

 
In the event the fire alarm sounds attendees will be advised to 
evacuate the building via the nearest fire exit and assemble at 
the Bottle of Notes opposite MIMA. 
 
 

  

2.   Apologies for Absence 
 
 

  

3.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive any declarations of interest. 
 
 

  

4.   Minutes- Standards Committee - 14 October 2024 
 
 

 3 - 4 

5.   Quarterly Update Report to Standards Committee 
 
 

 5 - 8 

6.   Constitution Report on Standards/Code of Conduct 
 
 

 9 - 56 

7.   Review of Gifts and Hospitality 
 
 

 57 - 64 

8.   Any other urgent items which in the opinion of the Chair, may 
be considered 
 
 

  

 
Charlotte Benjamin 
Director of Legal and Governance Services 

 

Page 1



 

Town Hall 
Middlesbrough 
Friday 28 March 2025 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillors A Romaine (Chair), I Morrish (Vice-Chair), D Davison, J Ewan, L Lewis, 
M Saunders and J Thompson 
 
Assistance in accessing information 
 
Should you have any queries on accessing the Agenda and associated information 
please contact Susan Lightwing/Joanne McNally, 01642 729712/01642 728329, 
Susan_lightwing@middlesbrough.gov.uk/Joanne_McNally@middlesbrough.gov.uk 
 

Page 2



Standards Committee Monday 14 October 2024 

1 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the Standards Committee was held on Monday 14 October 2024. 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillor A Romaine (Chair), I Morrish (Vice-Chair), J Ewan, L Lewis and 
J Thompson 
 

OFFICERS: S Lightwing and C Cunningham 
 
APOLOGIES FOR 
ABSENCE: 

were submitted on behalf of Councillors D Davison, M Saunders and M Smiles 

 
23/6 WELCOME AND FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

 
 The Chair read out the Fire Evacuation Procedure and welcomed all present to the meeting. 

 
23/7 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 There were no Declarations of Interest at this point in the meeting. 

 
23/8 MINUTES- STANDARDS COMMITTEE - 8 JULY 2024 

 
 The minutes of the Standards Committee meeting held on 8 July 2024 were submitted and 

approved as a correct record. 
 

23/9 QUARTERLY UPDATE REPORT TO STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

 A report of the Director of Legal Services was presented by the Deputy Monitoring Officer, to 
provide a quarterly update to the Standards Committee in relation to the recent and current 
position concerning Code of Conduct Complaints. 
 
There were 59 complaints in 2023. Of those complaints 9 were withdrawn or discontinued, 30 
were advised to be rejected based on the assessment criteria, 14 were resolved informally by 
way of advice and guidance and 6 were being investigated. 
 
In relation to 1 of those 6 complaints, information was awaited from external sources to 
finalise the investigation.  The remaining 5 complaints related to the same social media 
incident and the same Member, which were being investigated along with subsequent 
complaints of a similar nature in 2024, to ensure the issues were considered as a whole. 
 
There had been 12 complaints so far in 2024.   Six complaints had been rejected, and 6 
complaints had been accepted.   Out of the 6 accepted complaints, 3 related to the same 
Member in relation to social media posts and were being considered together with complaints 
made in 2023.   Two complaints were received in relation to a Member’s social media posts 
and 1 complaint was again in respect of a Member’s social media post and comments made. 
 
Although complaints were logged separately, the statistics and information could  show 
how separate complaints might relate to the same incident or subject matter, which had 
caused concern to a number of Councillors and/or members of the public. 
 
As discussed previously at Standards Committee, the common prevalent theme of the 
complaints was inappropriate use of social media.  Training was therefore being identified and 
organised in relation to the Council’s social media policy, social media use and the impact on 
Members’ Code of Conduct.  This included the use of private social media accounts where a 
Member could be acting in their capacity as a Councillor. 
 
It was accepted by the Deputy Monitoring Officer that there had been delays in relation to 
processing standards complaints to their completion.  The delays were generally due to 
staffing changes within the Directorate and were currently being addressed.   A locum 
Governance Officer had been appointed for a set period to look at the Constitution and 
governance, and also to review the process for standards complaints. 
 
Members raised issues in relation to the timelines for processing standards complaints and 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Monday 14th October, 2024  

multiple complaints in relation to the same Members.   
 
AGREED as follows that the: 
1. the information provided was received and noted. 
2. Deputy Monitoring Officer would provide statistical information at the next meeting in 

relation to the numbers of Members who had multiple complaints made against them. 
 

23/10 LOCALISM ACT 2011 - GENERAL DISPENSATION 
 

 A report of the Director of Legal and Governance and Monitoring Officer was presented, the 
purpose of which was to enable a general dispensation to be granted to those Elected 
Members who had applied for a dispensation in respect of matters that might affect so many 
Councillors that the Council or Committee would be inquorate. 
 
Councillors L Henman and L Young had both requested a dispensation. The dispensation 
would allow both Members to participate fully in a meeting whenever the following matters 
were discussed: 
 
a)         Housing; where the member (or spouse or partner) holds a tenancy or lease with the 
Council as long as the matter does not relate to the member’s particular tenancy or lease; 
 
b)         Housing Benefit; where the member (or spouse or partner) receives Housing Benefit; 
 
c)         Statutory sick pay; if a Councillor receives this or is entitled to receive it; 
 
d)         An allowance, travelling expense, payment or indemnity for Councillors; 
 
e)         Any ceremonial honour given to members. 
 
AGREED as follows that: 
 

1. Standards Committee granted a general dispensation to Councillors L Henman and L 
Young in respect of matters that might affect so many Councillors that the Council or 
Committee would be inquorate. 

 

2. The general dispensation be applied for the maximum permitted period of 4 years 
from the date of this decision. 

 
23/11 ANY OTHER URGENT ITEMS WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, MAY BE 

CONSIDERED 
 

 None. 
 

 
 

 

Page 4



 

1 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
Report of: Director of Legal and Governance Services 

 

Relevant Executive 
Member: 

The Mayor 

 

Submitted to: Standards Committee 

 

Date: 7 April 2025 

 

Title: Quarterly Update Report to Standards Committee 

 

Report for: Discussion 

 

Status: Public 

 

Council Plan 
priority: 

Delivering Best Value 

 

Key decision: Not applicable 

Why: Not applicable 

 

Subject to call in?: No 

Why: The report is for information to the Standards Committee 

 
 

Executive summary  

This report provides a quarterly update to the Standards Committee regarding previous 
years and the current years position concerning Code of Conduct Complaints. 

 
  

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 

2 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
1. Purpose 

 
To provide information only by way of a quarterly update to the Standards Committee 
regarding the previous years and the current position concerning Code of Conduct 
Complaints.  In addition that the Committee considers the information to discuss possible 
areas of member development and improvements. 

 
2. Recommendations  

 
That the Standards Committee notes the contents of this report, which will act as a basis 
for further discussion in the committee meeting. 
 

3. Rationale for the recommended decision(s) 
 
Not applicable as no decision is being made 

 
4. Background and relevant information 

 
4.1 This report is provided to committee members to give an overview of the current, and 

recent position with regards to the Code of Conduct complaints received 
 

Year 
(Jan-
Dec) 

Total 
complaints 

Member 
on 
Member 

Other 
non 
Member 
(ie 
member 
of public 
/ officer) 

No. 
withdrawn/ 
not 
progressed 
by 
complainant/
discontinued 
due to not re-
elected 

 

No. 
rejected 

No. 
resolved 
informally 

No. to 
investigation 

No. to 
standards 
Committee 
after 
investigatio
n 

 

2019 27 9 18 4 9 10 4 3 

2020 31 4 27 16 12 1 2 1 

2021 33 13 20 7 5 19 2 1 

2022  12 3 9 4 4 2 2 2 

2023 59 10 49 9 30 14 6 0 

2024 
 

21 
(11 are 
ongoing as 
to what 
action to 
take) 

 

7 14 0 9 0 0 0 

2025 9 (2 are 

ongoing) 
4 5 0 6 1 0 0 

 
4.2 There are no outstanding complains from 2020, 2021 and 2022. 

 
4.3 There were 59 complaints in 2023.  Of those complaints 9 were withdrawn or 

discontinued, 30 were advised to be rejected based on the assessment criteria, 14 
were resolved informally by way of advice and guidance. 6 complaints which have 

Page 6



 

3 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

been accepted are ongoing, 5 of those complaints relate to the same member and are 
linked with similar ongoing complaints made in 2024.   

 

4.4 There were 21 complaints in 2024.  Of those complaints 9 were rejected, 10 have been 
accepted and 1 is ongoing.  The 11 complaints that have not been rejected are currently 
being considered as to how they should proceed. 

 

4.5 There have been 9 complaints so far in 2025, 2 are ongoing, 6 have been rejected and 
1 complaint was accepted but resolved informally by advice and guidance.  
 

4.6 The statistics and information can show how separate complaints may relate to the same 
incident or subject matter, which has caused concern to several Councillors and / or 
members of the public, rather than the numbers reflecting wholly separate incidents.  

 

4.7 The common prevalent theme of the complaints is inappropriate use of social media. 
Training was therefore identified and carried out by the Local Government Association 
to Members on the 4 February 2025.  Ten Members attended the training.  The theme 
of complaints will be continued to be monitored to consider whether the training should 
be repeated. 

 

4.8 It is acknowledged there are a number of outstanding complaints from 2023 and 2024 to 
resolve which require prioritisation.  An update on the progress of the outstanding 
complaints will be provided at Standards Committee.  The Monitoring Officer has secured 
growth in the budget to employ a full-time, permanent governance solicitor to assist and 
support in standards matters. The recruitment process is underway. 
 

5. Other potential alternative(s) and why these have not been recommended 
 
Not applicable as no decision is being made 
 

6. Impact(s) of the recommended decision(s) 
 

Topic Impact 

Financial (including 
procurement and 
Social Value) 

There is no financial input 

Legal  There is no legal impact, the report is for information and 
discussion 

Risk The report contributes to the Council demonstrating its 
approach to monitoring and maintaining standards of 
behaviour and ethical governance 

Human Rights, Public 
Sector Equality Duty 
and Community 
Cohesion 

There are no issues affecting human rights, the public sector 
equality duty or community cohesion. 
 

Climate Change / 
Environmental  

There is no impact on the Council’s climate change or 
environmental aspirations. 

Children and Young 
People Cared for by 

There is no impact on children and young people cared for 
by the Authority and care leavers 

Page 7



 

4 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

the Authority and 
Care Leavers 

 

Data Protection There are no issues of data protection 
 

 
Actions to be taken to implement the recommended decision(s) 
 
The report is for information. 
 

Action Responsible Officer Deadline 

                  

 
Appendices 
 
Not applicable 
 

1       

2       

3       

 
Background papers 
 
No background papers were used in the preparation of this report. 
 

Body Report title Date 

                  

 
Contact:  Catherine Cunningham, Interim Head of Legal Services (Places) 
Email:  catherine_cunningham@middlesbrough.gov.uk 
 

Page 8



 

1 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
Report of: Director of Legal and Governance Services  

 

Submitted to: Standards Committee 

 

Date: 7 April 2025 

 

Title: Update on the review of the constitution 

 

Report for: Discussion 

 

Status: Public 

 

Council Plan 
priority: 

Delivering Best Value 

 

Key decision: No 

Why: Not applicable 

 

Subject to call in?: Not applicable 

Why: It is not an Executive Report  

 
 

Executive summary  

The Council is continuing to deliver its governance improvement programme, which 

included reviewing its constitution and scheme of delegations. This work is being led by 

the Constitution and Member Development Committee (“CMDC”) in respect of the Non-

executive functions and the Executive in respect of the Executive Functions.  

 

Officers and Members each have a key role to play in this process to ensure the 

constitution and delegations reflect the law and local custom and practice. CMDC has 

set up a working group to ensure that the review of the constitution is delivered in a 

timely fashion and hits the timeline set out for the review.   

 

It is intended that the refreshed constitution is presented to Annual Council on 21 May 

2025 for adoption. This report invites Standards Committee to consider the proposed 

changes to the Constitution at Section 8 in respect of presentation of the Standards 

Function.  

 
  

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 

2 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
1. Purpose 

 

1.1 The Constitution and Member Development Committee (‘CMDC’)has been 
reviewing the provisions of the Constitution to remove duplication and improve its 
usability as far as possible. It is proposing to amend Section 8 of the Constitution 
(Standards) and seeks the input of the Standards Committee as a result.  

 
2. Recommendations  

 

2.1 That the Standards Committee : 

2.1.1 consider and discuss the proposed revised Standards Section of the 
Constitution; 

2.1.2 provide any comments in respect of the proposed revised Section 8 of the 
Constitution to the Constitution and Member Development Working Group 
forthwith; 

 
3. Rationale for the recommended decision(s) 

 

3.1 The refreshed constitution provides a detailed glossary of terms and it is therefore 
important that the constitution applies these terms consistently throughout.  

3.2 There is no requirement for Standards Hearings Arrangements to be included in 
the constitution therefore it is proposed these are extracted from the constitution 
and made available via the website. 

3.3 The Member Code of Conduct is a cornerstone of good governance within the 
Council and therefore should be afforded greater visibility in the constitution, hence 
the suggestion it is included at Section 8 of the constitution. 

 
 
4. Background and relevant information 

 

4.1 The Council has recognised that improvements can be made to its governance 

processes, as set out in the corporate governance improvement plan, with 

particular reference to the refresh of the Constitution to ensure that it is accurate 

and current.  

Constitution 

4.2 The Council adopted a revised constitution format in May 2023, intended to make 

the constitution more accessible and user friendly. The Constitution is a living 

document that evolves continuously to reflect the ever changing environment in 

which the Council operates – nationally, regionally and locally. The Monitoring 

Officer therefore has ongoing responsibility for ensuring that the Constitution 

remains accurate and lawful, and has delegated authority to make some changes, 

Page 10



 

3 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

which are then reported to the next meeting of Council. More fundamental changes 

are approved by full Council.  

4.3 Since the updated Constitution was adopted issues of duplication and 

inconsistency have been identified, which is usual given the dynamic and complex 

environment in which the Council operates. The whole Constitution is therefore 

being reviewed as one coherent document with a view to ironing out any 

duplication or inconsistency and ensuring that the Constitution appropriately 

reflects the Council’s governance and operating arrangements.  

4.4 Most of the work on the constitution refresh is being reviewed through the 

Constitution and Member Development working group (CMDWG) however, where 

appropriate, views are also being sought from Officers and Members to ensure that 

any revisions are appropriate.  

4.5 The views of Members will also be sought throughout the process to ensure they 

are comfortable with the proposals – this will be achieved via a member briefing 

before the Annual Council and the last CMDC, and by reports going to relevant 

committees in respect of proposed amendments.   

4.6 To date, the CMDWG has considered and accepted: 

(a) Section 1 – Introduction 

(b) Section 2 – Constitution 

(c) Section 3 – Citizens and the Council  

(d) Section 4 – Council (including Council Procedure Rules) 

(e) Section 7 – Overview & Scrutiny 

(f) Section 8 – Standards 

Section 8 

4.7 Attached as Appendix 1 is the “roadmap” document approved by the CMDWG in 

respect of the section reflecting the Council’s Standards provisions, section 8. This 

sets out what the current provisions of the constitution are as well as the proposed 

provisions.  

4.8 The Standards Committee is invited to consider the proposed Section 8 of the 

Constitution and provide comments on the same to the CMDWG.   

 
5. Other potential alternative(s) and why these have not been recommended 

 

5.1   No alternative proposals have been identified by the CMDWG.  

 
6. Impact(s) of the recommended decision(s) 

 

Topic Impact 

Page 11



 

4 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Financial (including 
procurement and 
Social Value) 

None 

Legal  Ensures the constitution is more robust 

Risk None 

Human Rights, Public 
Sector Equality Duty 
and Community 
Cohesion 

None – save for presenting the document in a more 
streamlined and accessible format 

Climate Change / 
Environmental  

None 

Children and Young 
People Cared for by 
the Authority and 
Care Leavers 

None 

Data Protection None 

 
 
 
Appendices 
 

1 Section 8 Roadmap 

2       

3       

 
Background papers 
 

Body Report title Date 

                  

 
Contact:  Governance Solicitor, Clare Pattinson  
Email:  clare_pattinson@middlesbrough.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 12



 

224 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Constitution Roadmap 

 

How the roadmap of the constitution works  

 

The roadmap for the constitution has been designed to display the existing constitution, its issues and the proposed solution. The 

columns  

Column 1   URN - the Unique Reference Number given to each row of the roadmap so that they all have a unique number 

whichever section of the constitution you are looking at. This number will however change as additions and 

deletions are made to the document which is why it is the last column to be populated. 

Column 2  Section – the section of the current constitution that is being considered.  

Column 3  Para No. – the current paragraph number of the constitution – this becomes less helpful through the constitution if 

divorced from the section number given that the numbering reverts to 1 at the beginning of each later section of the 

constitution. 

Column 4  What it says – this is where the current constitution is set out.  

Column 5  Issue – the first part of this section sets out what the issues or concerns are about the EXISTING section of the 

constitution set out at paragraph 4. If no changes are required, that will be confirmed here. Alternatively, it may say 

there are minor changes for style / readability / consistency. If the changes proposed are more fundamental, the 

reasons why will be set out in more detail here, and may include potential options for resolution and confirm what 

the URN of the new constitution is where the existing provision now sits.  

 The second part of this column deals with the next sequential paragraph of the NEW constitution as set out in 

column 6. When changes are being made to harmonise and simplify the constitution, there is no way to keep the 

existing constitution and the new constitution paragraphs married up, particularly given that the Council has asked 

P
age 13



 

225 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

that the constitution only contain provisions once, to assist with amendment of the document. There is therefore 

substantial cross referencing in the proposed constitution to reduce duplication. 

 The second section is not required in Section 1 of the constitution due to the minimal nature of the amendments 

required to it.   

Column 6  Proposed Solution – this is the column which contains the proposed revised constitution. The rationale for this 

paragraph is set out in the second section of column 5. 

 

The “track change” Word version of the constitution, showing the actual changes (deletions, additions, moved sections etc.) is 

available upon request however the CMDWG has requested that all future meetings focus on the Roadmap document so everyone 

is working on the same document, making it easier to manage the meetings and comments.  

 

URN Section Para 
no.  

What it says Issue Proposed solution 

188.  8 - 
Standards 

 8 STANDARDS This section 
explains the functions of the 
Standards Committee and how 
Councillors are held to account 
through the Members’ Code of 
Conduct. 

Expanded to 
specifically include 
Mayor and Co-opted 
Members in the term 
“Members” and 
reference the 
Standards Regime 
rather than standards 
committee 

This section explains the Standards 
regime all Councillors, the Mayor and 
Co-opted Members (collectively 
referred to as Members for the 
purpose of this section of the 
Constitution) are required to comply 
with and how they are held to account 
in respect of their conduct and 
behaviour.   

189.   8.1 8.1 What is Standards? The 
Council has adopted a 
Members’ Code of Conduct to 
which all Councillors are 
required to adhere. The 
Standards Committee is 

Includes cross 
referencing  to the 
Code of Conduct and 
the Standards 
Committee, but 
removes the 

8.1 What is the Standards regime?  
The Council has adopted a Members’ 
Code of Conduct to which all 
Members are required to adhere – 
see further paragraph 8.9. The 
development of, and compliance with, 

P
age 14



 

226 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

responsible for deciding on 
alleged breaches of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct 
and any applicable sanctions, 
as well as advising on 
standards issues more 
generally. 

responsibilities of the 
Standards Committee 
to reduce duplication 

the Standards regime is monitored by 
the Standards Committee. 

190.   8.2 8.2 Who sits on the 
Standards Committee? 8.2.1 
There are nine (9) Councillors 
on the Standards Committee. 
The makeup of the Standards 
Committee must be politically 
balanced (i.e. a proportional 
number of members 
representing each political 
group in the Council). The 
Mayor may not be a member 
of the Standards Committee.  
8.2.2 Where the Standards 
Committee is considering a 
complaint against a member of 
a Parish Council, and/or an 
agenda item concerns or may 
affect a Parish Council, a 
member of each Parish 
Council will be entitled to sit on 
the Standards Committee.  
8.2.3 The chair of the 
Standards Committee is 
elected each year at the 
Annual Meeting of Full 

Existing 8.2 largely 
becomes new 8.2 with 
some harmonisation of 
language.  
 
New 8.2.1 reflects 
existing 8.6 (URN 195, 
column 4) 
 
New 8.2.2 provides 
Parish Council 
members on the 
Standards Committee 
are co-opted members 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8.2 Who sits on the Standards 
Committee?  
8.2.1 The Standards Committee 
comprises nine councillors and is 
politically balanced. The Mayor may 
not be a member of the Standards 
Committee.  
8.2.2 Where the Standards 
Committee is considering a complaint 
against a member of a Parish 
Council, and / or an agenda item 
concerning or affecting a Parish 
Council, one member of each of the 
three Parish Councils in the Borough 
will be entitled to sit on the Standards 
Committee as Co-opted Members.  
8.2.3 The chair of the Standards 
Committee is appointed at the Annual 
Meeting of Full Council and may not 
be an Executive Member. If the 
position of chair of the Standards 
Committee is vacant, a new chair will 
be elected at the next Council 
meeting.  

P
age 15



 

227 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Council. The Standards 
Committee chair may not be 
an Executive Member.  
8.2.4 If the position of chair of 
the Standards Committee is 
vacant, a new chair will be 
elected at the next Council 
meeting. 

 
 

8.2.4 The Council is also required to 
appoint an Independent Person  who 
must be consulted in relation to 
complaints that the Member Code of 
Conduct has been breached (see 
further paragraph 8.8). The 
Independent Person has no voting 
rights. 

 
New 8.2.4 reflects the 
requirement to have an 
independent person – 
legislation quoted as a 
footnote 

P
age 16



 

228 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

191.   8.3 8.3 What is the role of the 
Standards Committee? 8.3.1 
The Standards Committee is 
responsible for ensuring 
individual oversight of key 
issues that relate to ethics in 
Local Government.  
8.3.2 The Standards 
Committee is also responsible 
for:  
(a) promoting and maintaining 
high standards of conduct by 
Members and the Mayor;  
(b) assisting Members and the 
Mayor to observe the 
Members’ Code of Conduct;  
(c) advising the Council on the 
adoption or revision of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct;  
(d) monitoring the operation of, 
and compliance with, the 
Members’ Code of Conduct;  
(e) advising Members and the 
Mayor on matters relating to 
the Members’ Code of 
Conduct;  
(f) arranging to train Members 
and the Mayor on matters 
relating to the Members’ Code 
of Conduct;  
(g) considering reports relating 
to the conduct of Members 

The functions of the 
Standards Committee 
are set out in the 
Responsibility for 
Functions section of 
the constitution and not 
repeated here to 
remove duplication.  
 
New 8.3 does however 
introduce the rule of the 
Standards Committee. 

8.3 What is the role and function of 
the Standards Committee?  
8.3.1 The Standards Committee 
oversees key issues that relate to 
ethics in Local Government.  
8.3.2 The functions of the Standards 
Committee are set out in Section 9 of 
this constitution – Responsibility for 
Functions.     

P
age 17



 

229 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

which may be referred to it by 
the Council or Chief Officers, 
including issues relating to 
Members' interests and the 
maintenance and 
management of any relevant 
registers of interests;  
(h) receiving information from 
the Monitoring Officer on live 
complaints and the likely 
timelines for their investigation 
to be completed;  
(i) considering relevant reports 
referred by the Monitoring 
Officer and the Chief Finance 
Officer and making 
recommendations thereon to 
the Council as necessary;  
(j) granting dispensations to 
Members, Co-opted members 
and Parish Councillors and the 
Mayor from the requirements 
relating to declarations of 
interest. The Monitoring Officer 
may grant a dispensation 
where the matter is urgent and 
report it to the next available 
Standards Committee;  
(k) determining, after due 
investigation, allegations of 
breaches of the Members’ 
Code of Conduct and the 

P
age 18



 

230 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

imposing of any relevant 
sanctions;  
(l) receiving references from 
the Corporate Affairs 
Committee regarding issues of 
attendance by Members at 
training on the Code of 
Conduct; and (m) discharging 
the above functions in relation 
to Parish Councils. 

P
age 19



 

231 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

192.   8.4 8.4 When does the 
Standards Committee meet? 
8.4.1 The Standards 
Committee meets every three 
months to monitor and carry 
out assurance in relation to the 
handling of, complaints. For 
the avoidance of doubt, the 
provisions of section 4 as they 
relate to Committees shall 
apply to Standards Committee 
meetings.  
8.4.2 The Standards 
Committee will also meet to 
conduct hearings, as set out in 
the Standards Hearings 
Procedure Rules below. 

Existing 8.4 is reflected 
in new 8.5 (see URN 
193, column 6) 

8.4 What is the role of the 
Standards Committee in relation to 
Parish Councils? 
8.4.1 The Council is the principal 
council for the Borough . Its 
arrangements for the investigation 
and hearing of a complaint that a 
Member has breached the Code of 
Conduct also apply when a member 
of a Parish Council in the Borough is 
alleged to have breached the Parish 
Council’s Code of Conduct. 
8.4.2 The Code of Conduct for 
councillors adopted by each Parish 
Council in the Borough may be the 
same as the Council’s, or otherwise 
compliant with the statutory 
provisions.   

New 8.4 confirms the 
standing of MBC in 
relation to parish 
councils, and the status 
of its code of conduct 
for those parishes also. 

193.  8 – 
Standards 
Hearing 
Procedure 
Rules 

 STANDARDS HEARING 
PROCEDURE RULES In 
these Standards Hearing 
Procedure Rules, capitalised 
terms not otherwise defined in 
this Constitution shall have the 
meanings set out below:  
“Complainant” the person 
making a complaint about a 
Subject Member to the 
Standards Committee; 
“Communications Plan” the 
plan setting out the way in 

The definitions have 
been transferred to the 
glossary where 
necessary therefore the 
commentary is deleted. 

8.5 When does the Standards 
Committee meet? 
8.5.1 The Standards Committee 
meets every three months to consider 
issues of ethics and to monitor the 
handling of complaints against 
Members.  
8.5.2 Additional meetings of the 
Standards Committee will be 
convened to conduct standards 
hearings.  
8.5.3 All meetings of the Standards 
Committee (including Hearings) are 

New 8.5 reflects 
existing 8.4 (see 
URN192, column 4) 
with simplified 
presentation and cross 
referencing to the 
Council Procedure 

P
age 20



 

232 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

which a Member must 
communicate with Members 
and Officers;  
“Independent Person” the 
independent person appointed 
by the Council to provide their 
views on any Standards 
complaint;  
“Investigating Officer” the 
person responsible for 
investigating a complaint and 
producing a report;  
“Subject Member” a Member 
who is the subject of a 
complaint to the Standards 
Committee. 

rules and hearing 
timescales 

subject to the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules set out at Section 
XX of this constitution.  
8.5.4 Standards Hearings will be 
held no earlier than 14 working days 
and no later than 28 working days 
after the Monitoring Officer has 
provided the Investigating Officer’s 
final report to the Complainant and 
the subject Member. 

 

194.  8 – 
Standards 
Hearing 
Procedure 
Rules 

8.5 8.5 What are the rules of 
procedure for Standards 
Committee hearings? These 
procedure rules shall apply to 
the Standards Committee 
when considering the 
Investigating Officer’s report 
under these arrangements. 

Existing 8.5 becomes 
8.6, but removes the 
hearing procedures 
from the constitution 
 

8.6 What are the rules of 
procedure for the Standards 
Committee?  
8.6.1 The Standard Committee is 
subject to the Council Procedure 
Rules set out at paragraph 4.8. of this 
Constitution, as they relate to 
Committees.  
8.6.2 Complaints that a Member has 
breached the Code of Conduct will be 
addressed as set out in the 
Procedure for Member Code of 

New 8.6 reflects that 
the Standards 
Committee is subject to 
the Council procedure 
rules but also has its 
own procedure / 
arrangements for 
hearings, which need 

P
age 21



 

233 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

not form part of the 
constitution.  
 
Legislative footnote 
included 

Conduct Complaints, as required by 
the Localism Act 2011 . 

195.  8 – 
Standards 
Hearing 
Procedure 
Rules 

8.6 8.6 What is the composition 
of the Standards 
Committee? The Standards 
Committee comprises nine (9) 
Members and, if required, two 
(2) Parish Councillors. 

8.6 is reflected in 
existing 8.2 and new 
8.2 – see URN 190, 
columns 4 and 6 

8.7 What are the possible 
sanctions the Standards Committee 
can determine following a Standards 
Hearing?   
8.7.1 Where the Standards 
Committee determines that a Member 
has failed to comply with the relevant 
Members’ Code of Conduct, any one 
or more of the sanctions below, or 
any further sanctions deemed 
appropriate by the Standards 
Committee, may be applied / 
recommended, within the powers of 
the Committee (this list is not 
exhaustive):  
(a) a recommendation to the Council 
or Parish Council (as appropriate) 
that the subject Member be issued 
with a formal censure (i.e., the issue 
of an unfavourable opinion or 
judgement or reprimand) by motion;  
(b) the issue of an instruction that the 
subject Member is removed from 
specified Committee(s) of the 
Council;  
(c) a recommendation to the Mayor 
that the subject Member be removed 

New 8.7 reflects the 
sanctions set out at 
existing paragraph 8.12 
(see URN 201, column 
4) with minor changes 
to harmonise language 

P
age 22



 

234 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

from the Executive or removed from 
particular Executive Portfolio 
responsibilities;  
(d) an instruction to the Monitoring 
Officer, or the Parish Council (as 
appropriate), to arrange training for 
the subject Member;  
(e) a recommendation to the Council, 
or Parish Council (as appropriate), 
that the subject Member is removed 
from outside appointments to which 
they have been appointed or 
nominated by the Council, Executive 
or Parish Council;  
(f) an instruction to the Monitoring 
Officer, or Parish Council (as 
appropriate), to withdraw facilities 
provided to the subject Member by 
the Council, or Parish Council, such 
as a computer, website and / or email 
and internet access;  
(g) an instruction to the Monitoring 
Officer or Parish Council (as 
appropriate), to prepare and 
implement a communication plan for 
the subject Member;  
(h) an instruction to the Monitoring 
Officer, or Parish Council (as 
appropriate), to exclude the Subject 
Member from the Council or Parish 
Council’s offices or other premises, 
except for meeting rooms as 

P
age 23



 

235 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

necessary for Council or Parish 
Council Committee meetings;  
(i) an instruction to the Monitoring 
Officer, or Parish Council (as 
appropriate), to apply the informal 
resolution process;  
(j) an instruction to the Monitoring 
Officer, or Parish Council (as 
appropriate), to issue a press release 
or other form of publicity; or  
(k) an instruction to the Monitoring 
Officer, or Parish Council (as 
appropriate), to restrict the Subject 
Member’s access to confidential or 
exempt information.  
8.7.2 The Standards Committee has 
no power to suspend or disqualify the 
subject Member or to withdraw basic 
allowances. The subject Member will 
however lose the entitlement to a 
Special Responsibility Allowance if 
removed from a role that attracts 
such a payment. 

196.  8 – 
Standards 
Hearing 
Procedure 
Rules 

8.7 8.7 What is the purpose of a 
Standards Committee 
hearing 8.7.1 The purpose of 
the hearing is for the 
Standards Committee to 
consider, on the evidence 
provided, whether the Subject 
Member has breached the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 

Existing 8.7 is reflected 
within 8.5.2 (URN 193, 
column 6) re hearings, 
new 8.6.2 (URN 194, 
column 6)  re 
procedures and new 
8.2.4 (URN190, column 
6) and 8.8 re 
independent person 

8.8 What is the role of the 
independent person? 
8.8.1 The Council must appoint at 
least one independent person whose 
views must be sought, and taken into 
account, by the Council before it 
makes a decision on an allegation 
that it has investigated. 

P
age 24



 

236 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

The conduct of others, for 
example Officers, is dealt with 
through another process.  
8.7.2 The Independent Person 
will be invited to attend and 
participate in the Standards 
Committee meeting but will not 
have voting rights. 

 8.8.2 Members who have had an 
allegation made against them may, if 
they wish, also seek the views of the 
independent person. 

8.8 sets out the 
statutory provisions 
regarding the 
independent person 
 
 
 
 
 

197.  8 – 
Standards 
Hearing 
Procedure 
Rules 

8.8 8.8 How and when are 
Standards Committee 
hearings convened? 8.8.1 
The legal requirements for 
publishing agendas, minutes 
and calling meetings, will apply 
to the Standards Committee. 
The hearing will be held in 
public no earlier than 14 
working days and no later than 
28 working days after the 
Monitoring Officer has copied 
the Investigating Officer’s final 
report to the Complainant and 
the Subject Member. Members 

Given the niche nature 
of the standards 
hearing process, the 
arrangements required 
under the Localism Act 
have been moved to a 
separate Procedure 
outside of the 
constitution, as 
referenced at new 8.6.2 
(URN 194, column 6). 
 
 
 
 

8.9 What is the Member Code of 
Conduct? 
Introduction 
8.9.1 The role of elected member 
across all tiers of local government is 
a vital part democracy. It is important 
that Members can be held 
accountable and all adopt the 
behaviours and responsibilities 
associated with the role. The conduct 
of individual Members affects the 
reputation of all Members. The role of 
councillor should be one that people 
from a range of backgrounds and 
circumstances aspire to. 

P
age 25



 

237 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

of the public and press will be 
excluded from meetings of the 
Standards Committee where it 
is likely that confidential or 
exempt information will be 
disclosed. 
8.8.2 The Monitoring Officer, in 
consultation with the chair of 
the Standards Committee, will 
convene a meeting of the 
Standards Committee.  
8.8.3 If the Subject Member is 
unavailable for the proposed 
date of the meeting, the 
Monitoring Officer, in 
consultation with the chair of 
the Standards Committee, will 
determine whether the 
meeting can be arranged 
outside of the prescribed 
timescale. If a meeting cannot 
be arranged within the 
prescribed timescale, the 
Subject Member may be 
requested to provide a 
reasonable explanation to the 
chair of the Standards 
Committee, along with any 
appropriate evidence of their 
unavailability.  
8.8.4 Where the Subject 
Member fails to attend the 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
New 8.9 is the Member 
Code of Conduct 
formerly included in the 
constitution at Section 
24. New 8.9.1 – 8.9.5 
reflect the current Code 
of Conduct.  
 
Including the Member 
Code of Conduct in 
Part 8 makes it easier 
to locate and read in 
conjunction with the 
Standards information.  
 
Given that the Code 
has been adopted by 

8.9.2 Members represent local 
residents, work to develop better 
services and deliver local change. 
The public have high expectations of 
Members, entrusting them to 
represent their local area, taking 
decisions fairly, openly, and 
transparently. Members have both an 
individual and collective responsibility 
to meet these expectations by 
maintaining high standards and 
demonstrating good conduct, and by 
challenging behaviour which falls 
below expectations. 
8.9.3 Importantly, Members should 
be able to undertake their role without 
being intimidated, abused, bullied, or 
threatened by anyone, including the 
general public. 
8.9.4 The Code of Conduct has 
been designed to protect the 
democratic role, encourage good 
conduct and safeguard the public’s 
trust in local government. All councils 
are required to have a local Member 
Code of Conduct. 
8.9.5 The purpose of the Code of 
Conduct is to assist Members to 
model the behaviour expected of 
them, to provide a personal check 
and balance, and to set out the type 
of conduct that could lead to action 

P
age 26



 

238 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Standards Committee meeting 
and where the Standards 
Committee is not satisfied with 
their explanation for their 
absence from the hearing, the 
Standards Committee may, 
having regard to any written 
representations submitted by 
the Subject Member, and/or 
the Investigating Officer’s 
report  
resolve to proceed with the 
hearing in the Subject 
Member’s absence and make 
a determination. Alternatively, 
if the Standards Committee is 
satisfied with the Subject 
Member’s reasons for not 
attending the hearing, it may 
adjourn the hearing to another 
date. The Standards 
Committee may resolve, in 
exceptional circumstances, 
that it will proceed with the 
hearing on the basis that it is 
in the public interest to hear 
the allegations expeditiously. 
Standards Committee 
hearings shall only be 
adjourned once, if the Subject 
Member fails to attend a 
second scheduled meeting 

the Council in the first 
person, the obligations 
of the same have been 
retained in first person 
but highlighted in bold 
to distinguish them 
from the guidance, 
which has been 
transferred to third 
person and the 
language harmonised 
with the rest of the 
constitution as far as 
possible. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

being taken against them. It is also to 
protect Members, the public, fellow 
councillors, local authority officers 
and the reputation of local 
government. It sets out general 
principles of conduct expected of all 
Members and specific obligations in 
relation to standards of conduct. The 
fundamental aim of the Code is to 
create and maintain public confidence 
in the role of Members and local 
government. 

P
age 27



 

239 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

without exceptional 
circumstances, the meeting 
shall proceed in the Subject 
Member’s absence. 

198.  8 – 
Standards 
Hearing 
Procedure 
Rules 

8.9 8.9 How are matters decided 
at a Standards Committee 
hearing? All matters/issues 
before the Standards 
Committee will be decided by 
a simple majority of votes cast, 

Existing 8.9 is 
redundant given the 
committee is subject to 
the CPRs at Part 4 of 
the constitution, which 
provides for voting  

General principles of Member 
conduct 
8.9.6 Everyone in public office at all 
levels; all who serve the public or 
deliver public services, including 
ministers, civil servants, councillors 

P
age 28



 

240 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

with the Chair having a second 
or casting vote. 

New 8.9.6 and 8.9.7 
reflect the current code 
of conduct, including 
the requirement to 
observe the Nolan 
Principles and setting 
out the general 
principles identified for 
members. 

and local authority officers; should 
uphold the Seven Principles of Public 
Life, also known as the Nolan 
Principles, as set out at Appendix A. 
8.9.7 Building on these principles, 
the following general principles have 
been developed  specifically for the 
role of a Member: 
In accordance with the public trust 
placed in me, on all occasions: 
(a) I act with integrity and honesty; 
(b) I act lawfully; 
(c) I treat all persons fairly and with 
respect; and 
(d) I lead by example and act in a 
way that secures public confidence in 
the role of councillor. 
In undertaking my role: 
(e) I impartially exercise my 
responsibilities in the interests of the 
local community; 
(f) I do not improperly seek to confer 
an advantage, or disadvantage, on 
any person; 
(g) I avoid conflicts of interest; 
(h) I exercise reasonable care and 
diligence; and 
(i) I ensure that public resources are 
used prudently in accordance with my 
local authority’s requirements and in 
the public interest. 

P
age 29



 

241 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

199.  8 – 
Standards 
Hearing 
Procedure 
Rules 

8.10 8.10 Who may 
accompany/represent a 
Subject Member at a 
Standards Committee 
hearing? The Subject 
Member may choose to be 
accompanied by and/or 
represented at a Standards 
Committee meeting by a fellow 
Councillor, friend or colleague. 
The Subject Member will not 
be entitled to be represented 
by a solicitor or other legal 
representative, or by any 
Officer. 

The arrangements 
required under the 
Localism Act have 
been moved to a 
separate Procedure 
outside of the 
constitution, as 
referenced at new 8.6.2 
(URN 194, column 6). 
Existing 8.10 is 
therefore deleted from 
the constitution 

Application of the Code of Conduct 
8.9.8 The Code of Conduct applies 
to Members as soon as they sign the 
declaration of acceptance of the 
office of councillor or Mayor, or attend 
their first meeting as a Co-opted 
Member. It continues to apply until 
the Member’s term of office, or Co-
opted Member role, ends. 
8.9.9 The Code of Conduct applies 
when Members act in their capacity 
as a Member. This may include when 
Members: 
(a) misuse their position as a 
Member; or 
(b) their actions would give the 
impression to a reasonable member 
of the public, with knowledge of all 
the facts, that they are acting as a 
Member or Co-opted Member. 
8.9.10 The Code applies to all forms 
of communication and interaction, 
including: 
(a) at face-to-face meetings; 
(b) at online or telephone 
meetings; 
(c) in written communication; 
(d) in verbal communication; 
(e) in non-verbal communication; 
and 

New 8.9.8 to 8.9.12  
reflects the current 
content of the Member 
Code of Conduct, 
dealing with when the 
code applies (8.9.9), 
the types of 
interactions it applies to 
(8.9.10),  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
the expectations of 
members (8.9.11)  
 
 

P
age 30



 

242 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

the role of the 
Monitoring Officer in 
relation to Standards 
(8.9.12). 
 
 
 
8.9.13 encourages 
parish councillors to 
seek advice from their 
clerk. 

(f) in electronic and social media 
communication, posts, statements 
and comments. 
8.9.11 Members are also expected to 
uphold high standards of conduct and 
show leadership at all times when 
acting as a Member. 
8.9.12 The Monitoring Officer has 
statutory responsibility for the 
implementation of the Code of 
Conduct, and Members of the Council 
are encouraged to seek advice from 
the Monitoring Officer on any matters 
that may relate to the Code of 
Conduct.  
8.9.13 Town and parish councillors 
are encouraged to seek advice from 
their Clerk, who may refer matters to 
the Monitoring Officer. 

P
age 31



 

243 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

200.  8 – 
Standards 
Hearing 
Procedure 
Rules 

8.11 8.11 What is the order of 
business for a Standards 
Committee hearing? 8.11.1 
Subject to section 8.11.2 
below, the order of business of 
a Standards Committee 
hearing will be as follows:  
(a) apologies for absence;  
(b) declarations of interests;  
(c) approval of minutes of the 
previous meeting;  
(d) if the Subject Member is 
absent, consideration of 
whether to adjourn or to 
proceed with the hearing (refer 
to section 8.8.4 above);  
(e) introduction by the chair, of 
members of the Standards 
Committee, the Independent 
Person, Monitoring Officer or 
Deputy, Investigating Officer, 
Democratic Services Officer, 
the Committee’s legal adviser, 

The arrangements 
required under the 
Localism Act have 
been moved to a 
separate Procedure 
outside of the 
constitution, as 
referenced at new 8.6.2 
(URN 194, column 6). 
Existing 8.10 is 
therefore deleted from 
the constitution 

Standards of Member conduct 
8.9.14 This section sets out the 
obligations and minimum standards 
of conduct required of Members. 
Conduct falling short of these 
standards may result in a complaint 
of a breach of the Code of Conduct. 
Complaints found proved may result 
in action being taken. Guidance is 
included to help explain the reasons 
for the obligations and how they 
should be followed. 
Respect 
8.9.15 As a Member: 
(a) I treat other Members and 
members of the public with respect. 
(b) I treat local authority 
employees, employees and 
representatives of partner 
organisations and those volunteering 
for the local authority with respect 
and respect the role they play. 
8.9.16 Respect means politeness and 
courtesy in behaviour, speech, and in 

P
age 32



 

244 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

the Subject Member and their 
representative; 
(f) receipt of representations 
from the Monitoring Officer 
and/or Subject Member as to 
whether any part of the 
hearing should be held in 
private and/or whether any 
documents (or parts thereof) 
should be withheld from the 
public / press;  
(g) determination of whether 
the public / press are to be 
excluded from any part of the 
meeting and/or whether any 
documents (or parts thereof) 
should be withheld from the 
public / press. When the public 
/ press are excluded from any 
part of the meeting, filming, 
photography and/or audio 
recordings of the meeting will 
be prohibited in accordance 
with the Protocol on Filming 
Council Meetings section 24 of 
this Constitution; and  
(h) consideration of the report 
of the Investigating Officer and 
determination of the matter.  
8.11.2 The chair may exercise 
their discretion and amend the 
order of business, where they 

New 8.9.14 to 8.9.36 
continues the Member 
Code of Conduct 
 
8.9.14 reflects the 
standards and 
expectations of 
Members 
 
8.9.15 reflects the 
requirement for 
respect, while 8.9.16 
and 8.9.17 provide 
more context  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.9.18 relates to 
bullying, harassment 
and discrimination, 
supported by 8.9.19 – 
8.9.22 
 
 
 
 
 

the written word. Debate and having 
different views are all part of a 
healthy democracy. Members can 
express, challenge, criticise and 
disagree with views, ideas, opinions 
and policies in a robust but civil 
manner. Members  should not, 
however, subject individuals, groups 
of people or organisations to personal 
attack. The public should be treated 
politely and courteously. Rude and 
offensive behaviour lowers the 
public’s expectations and confidence 
in Members. 
8.9.17 In return, Members have a 
right to expect respectful behaviour 
from the public. If members of the 
public are being abusive, intimidatory 
or threatening Members are entitled 
to stop any conversation or 
interaction in person or online and 
report them to the local authority, the 
relevant social media provider or the 
police. This also applies to fellow 
Members, where action could then be 
taken under the Councillor Code of 
Conduct, and local authority 
employees, where concerns should 
be raised in line with the Protocol for 
Member / Officer Relations at section 
xx of this Constitution.  

P
age 33



 

245 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

consider that it is expedient to 
do so in order to secure the 
effective and fair consideration 
of any matter.  
8.11.3 The Standards 
Committee may adjourn the 
hearing at any time. 
 8.11.4 Witnesses  
(a) The process of the hearing 
is inquisitorial, and not 
adversarial. Witnesses should 
not be made to feel 
uncomfortable or that their 
integrity is being questioned. 
The purpose of the hearing is 
to establish the facts.  
(b) All questions to witnesses 
should be made through the 
chair.  
8.11.5 Presentation of the 
complaint 
 (a) The Investigating Officer 
will present their report to the 
hearing, including any 
documentary evidence or 
other material, and call their 
witnesses. No new points will 
be permitted. 
 (b) The Subject Member or 
their representative may 
question the Investigating 
Officer, and any witnesses 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bullying, harassment and 
discrimination 
8.9.18 As a Member: 
(a) I do not bully any person. 
(b) I do not harass any person. 
(c) I promote equalities and do not 
discriminate unlawfully against any 
person. 
8.9.19 The Advisory, Conciliation and 
Arbitration Service (ACAS) 
characterises bullying as offensive, 
intimidating, malicious or insulting 
behaviour, an abuse or misuse of 
power through means that 
undermine, humiliate, denigrate or 
injure the recipient. Bullying might be 
a regular pattern of behaviour or a 
one-off incident, happen face-to-face, 
on social media, in emails or phone 
calls, happen in the workplace or at 
work social events and may not 
always be obvious or noticed by 
others. 
8.9.20 The Protection from 
Harassment Act 1997 defines 
harassment as conduct that causes 
alarm or distress or puts people in 
fear of violence and must involve 
such conduct on at least two 
occasions. It can include repeated 
attempts to impose unwanted 
communications and contact upon a 

P
age 34



 

246 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

called by the Investigating 
Officer.  
(c) The Standards Committee 
may question the Investigating 
Officer, the Independent 
Person, and any witnesses 
called by the Investigating 
Officer, upon the contents of 
the Investigating Officer’s 
report. 
 8.11.6 Presentation of the 
Subject Member’s response 
 (a) The Subject Member, or 
their representative, will 
present their response to the 
Investigating Officer’s report 
and call their witnesses.  
(b) The Investigating Officer 
may question the Subject 
Member and any witnesses 
called by the Subject Member.  
(c) The Standards Committee 
may question the Subject 
Member, the Independent 
Person, the Advisory Officer, 
and any witnesses called by 
the Subject Member. 
 8.11.7 Summing up (a) The 
Investigating Officer will sum 
up their report.  
(b) The Subject Member or 
their representative will sum 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.9.23 reflects the 
impartiality of officers, 
with supporting 
information in 8.9.24. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.9.25 reflects the 
provisions in relation to 
confidential 
information, supported 
by 8.9.26 
 
 

person in a manner that could be 
expected to cause distress or fear in 
any reasonable person. 
8.9.21 Unlawful discrimination is 
where someone is treated unfairly 
because of a protected characteristic. 
Protected characteristics are specific 
aspects of a person's identity defined 
by the Equality Act 2010. They are 
age, disability, gender reassignment, 
marriage and civil partnership, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, 
religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation. 
8.9.22 The Equality Act 2010 places 
specific duties on local authorities. 
Members have a central role to play 
in ensuring that equality issues are 
integral to the Council’s performance 
and strategic aims, and that there is a 
strong vision and public commitment 
to equality across public services. 
Impartiality of officers of the council 
8.9.23 As a Member: 
I do not compromise, or attempt to 
compromise, the impartiality of 
anyone who works for, or on behalf 
of, the local authority. 
8.9.24 Officers work for the local 
authority as a whole and must be 
politically neutral (unless they are 
political assistants). They should not 

P
age 35



 

247 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

up their response to the 
Investigating Officer’s report.  
8.11.8 Deliberations and 
decisions of the Standards 
Committee 
 (a) Having heard the 
representations / views of all 
parties, the Standards 
Committee will adjourn the 
hearing and deliberate in 
private (assisted on matters of 
law by a legal adviser) to 
consider whether, on the facts 
found, the Subject Member 
has failed to comply with the 
Members’ Code of Conduct, 
and if so, what sanctions 
should be applied.  
(b) Before reaching a decision, 
the Standards Committee will 
consider the views expressed 
by the Independent Person, 
including any views on 
sanctions to be applied and/or 
recommendations to the 
Council, a Parish Council, or 
the Monitoring Officer.  
(c) Where the complaint has a 
number of aspects, the 
Standards Committee may 
reach a finding, apply a 
sanction and/or make a 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

be coerced or persuaded to act in a 
way that would undermine their 
neutrality. Members can question 
officers in order to understand, for 
example, their reasons for proposing 
to act in a particular way, or the 
content of a report that they have 
written. However, Members must not 
try and force officers to act differently, 
change their advice, or alter the 
content of that report, if doing so 
would prejudice their professional 
integrity. 
Confidentiality and access to 
information 
8.9.25 As a Member: 
(a)  I do not disclose information: 
(i) given to me in confidence by 
anyone; 
(ii) acquired by me which I 
believe, or ought reasonably to be 
aware, is of a confidential nature, 
unless: 
1. I have received the consent of 
a person authorised to give it; 
2. I am required by law to do so; 
3. the disclosure is made to a 
third party for the purpose of 
obtaining professional legal advice 
provided that the third party agrees 
not to disclose the information to any 
other person; or 

P
age 36



 

248 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

recommendation on each 
aspect separately.  
(d) The Standards Committee 
will make its decision on the 
balance of probability, based 
on the evidence before it 
during the hearing.  
(e) The Standards Committee 
may at any time come out of 
private session and reconvene 
the hearing in public to seek 
additional evidence from the 
Investigating Officer, the 
Subject Member or the 
witnesses. If further 
information to assist the 
Committee cannot be 
presented, then the Committee 
may adjourn the hearing and 
issue directions as to the 
additional evidence required 
and from whom.  
(f) If evidence presented to the 
Standards Committee 
highlights other potential 
breaches of the Council’s or 
Parish Council’s Members’ 
Code of Conduct, then the 
chair will outline the Standards 
Committee’s concerns and 
recommend that the matter be 

 
 
 
 
 
8.9.27 deals with 
disrepute, supported by 
8.9.28 and 8.9.29 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.9.30 relates to use of 
position by members, 
supported by 8.9.31 
 

4. the disclosure is: 
a. reasonable and in the public 
interest; and 
b. made in good faith and in 
compliance with the reasonable 
requirements of the local authority; 
and 
c. I have consulted the 
Monitoring Officer prior to its release. 
(b) I do not improperly use 
knowledge gained solely as a result 
of my role as a councillor for the 
advancement of myself, my friends, 
my family members, my employer or 
my business interests. 
(c) I do not prevent anyone from 
getting information that they are 
entitled to by law. 
8.9.26 Local authorities must work 
openly and transparently, and their 
proceedings and printed materials are 
open to the public, except in certain 
legally defined circumstances. 
Members should work on this basis, 
but there will be times when it is 
required by law that discussions, 
documents and other information 
relating to or held by the local 
authority must be treated in a 
confidential manner. Examples 
include personal data relating to 

P
age 37



 

249 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

referred to the Monitoring 
Officer as a new complaint.  
(g) Having deliberated on its 
decision and/or 
recommendations and the 
application of any sanctions, 
the Standards Committee will 
reconvene the hearing in 
public and the chair will 
announce:  
(i) the Standards Committee 
decision as to whether or not 
the Subject Member has failed 
to comply with the relevant 
Members’ Code of Conduct, 
detailing the breaches, and the 
principal reasons for the 
decision;  
(ii) the sanctions (if any) to be 
applied;  
(iii) the recommendations (if 
any) to be made to the Council 
or Parish Council (as 
appropriate) and/or Monitoring 
Officer; and  
(iv) that there is no right of 
appeal against the Standards 
Committee decision and/or 
recommendations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.9.32 sets 
expectations in respect 
of use of Council 
resources, supported 
by 8.9.33 and 8.9.34 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

individuals or information relating to 
ongoing negotiations. 
 Disrepute 
8.9.27 As a Member: 
I do not bring my role or local 
authority into disrepute. 
8.9.28 Members are trusted to make 
decisions on behalf of their 
community. Members actions and 
behaviour are subject to greater 
scrutiny than that of ordinary 
members of the public. Members 
should be aware that their actions 
might have an adverse impact on 
them, other Members and / or the 
Council and may lower the public’s 
confidence in them or the Council’s 
ability to discharge functions. For 
example, behaviour that is 
considered dishonest and / or 
deceitful can bring the Council into 
disrepute. 
8.9.29 Members are able to hold the 
local authority and fellow Members to 
account and are able to constructively 
challenge and express concern about 
decisions and processes undertaken 
by the council whilst continuing to 
adhere to other aspects of this Code 
of Conduct. 
Use of position 
8.9.30 As a Member: 

P
age 38



 

250 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.9.35 sets out the 
commitment to 
undertake training 
while 8.9.35 repeats 
the requirement to 
have high standards 

I do not use, or attempt to use, my 
position improperly to the advantage 
or disadvantage of myself or anyone 
else. 
8.9.31 A Member of the Council has 
certain opportunities, responsibilities, 
and privileges, and Members make 
choices all the time that will impact 
others. However, Members should 
not take advantage of these 
opportunities to further their own or 
others’ private interests or to 
disadvantage anyone unfairly. 
Use of local authority resources and 
facilities 
8.9.32 As a Member: 
(a) I do not misuse council 
resources. 
(b) I will, when using the 
resources of the local authority or 
authorising their use by others: 
(i) act in accordance with the 
local authority's requirements; and 
(ii) ensure that such resources are 
not used for political purposes unless 
that use could reasonably be 
regarded as likely to facilitate, or be 
conducive to, the discharge of the 
functions of the local authority or of 
the office to which I have been 
elected or appointed. 

P
age 39



 

251 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

8.9.33 Members may be provided 
with resources and facilities by the 
Council to assist in carrying out their 
duties as a councillor. Examples 
include: 
(a) office support;  
(b) stationery; 
(c) equipment such as phones, 
and computers; 
(d) transport; and  
(e) access and use of local 
authority buildings and rooms. 
8.9.34 These are provided to help 
Members carry out their role as a 
councillor more effectively and are 
not to be used for business or 
personal gain. They should be used 
in accordance with the purpose for 
which they have been provided and 
the Council’s policies regarding their 
use. 
Complying with the Code of Conduct 
8.9.35 As a Member: 
(a) I undertake Code of Conduct 
training provided by my local 
authority. 
(b) I cooperate with any Code of 
Conduct investigation and/or 
determination. 
(c) I do not intimidate or attempt to 
intimidate any person who is likely to 

P
age 40



 

252 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

be involved with the administration of 
any investigation or proceedings. 
(d) I comply with any sanction 
imposed on me following a finding 
that I have breached the Code of 
Conduct. 
8.9.36 It is extremely important for 
Members to demonstrate high 
standards, have their actions 
scrutinised and not undermine public 
trust in the Council or its governance. 
Members who do not understand or 
are concerned about the Council’s 
processes in handling a complaint 
should raise this with the Monitoring 
Officer. 
 

P
age 41



 

253 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

201.  8 – 
Standards 
Hearing 
Procedure 
Rules 

8.12 8.12 What are the possible 
sanctions the Standards 
Committee can determine? 
8.12.1 Subject to section 
8.12.4 below, where the 
Standards Committee 
determines that the Subject 
Member has failed to comply 
with the relevant Members’ 
Code of Conduct, any one or 
more of the sanctions below, 
or any further sanctions 
deemed appropriate by the 
Standards Committee, may be 
applied / recommended, within 
the powers of the Committee 
(this list is not exhaustive):  
(a) a recommendation to the 
Council or Parish Council (as 
appropriate) that the Subject 
Member be issued with a 
formal censure (i.e., the issue 
of an unfavourable opinion or 
judgement or reprimand) by 
motion;  
(b) the issue of an instruction 
that the Subject Member is 
removed from specified 
Committee(s) of the Council;  
(c) a recommendation to the 
Mayor that the Subject 
Member be removed from the 

Current 8.12 is 
reflected in new 8.9.7 
(see URN 195, column 
6) with minor 
amendment.  

Interests 
8.9.37 As a Member: 
I register and disclose my interests. 
8.9.38 Section 29 of the Localism Act 
2011 requires the Monitoring Officer 
to establish and maintain a register of 
interests of members of the authority. 
8.9.39 Members need to register their 
interests so that the public, Council 
employees and fellow Members know 
which interests might give rise to a 
conflict of interest. The register is a 
public document that can be 
consulted when (or before) an issue 
arises. The register also protects 
Members by allowing them to 
demonstrate openness and a 
willingness to be held accountable. 
Members are personally responsible 
for deciding whether or not to 
disclose an interest in a meeting, but 
it can be helpful for them to know 
early on if others think that a potential 
conflict might arise. It is also 
important that the public know about 
any interest that might have to be 
disclosed by Members when making 
or taking part in decisions, so that 
decision making is seen by the public 
as open and honest. This helps to 
ensure that public confidence in the 

P
age 42



 

254 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Executive or removed from 
particular Executive Portfolio 
responsibilities;  
(d) an instruction to the 
Monitoring Officer, or the 
Parish Council (as 
appropriate), to arrange 
training for the Subject 
Member; 
(e) a recommendation to the 
Council, or Parish Council (as 
appropriate), that the Subject 
Member is removed from all 
outside appointments to which 
they have been appointed or 
nominated by the Council, 
Executive or Parish Council;  
(f) an instruction to the 
Monitoring Officer, or Parish 
Council (as appropriate), to 
withdraw facilities provided to 
the Subject Member by the 
Council, or Parish Council, 
such as a computer, website 
and/or email and internet 
access;  
(g) an instruction to the 
Monitoring Officer or Parish 
Council (as appropriate), to 
implement a Communications 
Plan for the Subject Member;  

New 8.9.37 reflects the 
code of conduct in 
respect of interests.  
 
8.9.38 confirms the 
Monitoring Officer must 
maintain a register of 
member interests, 
supported by 8.9.39.  
8.9.40 confirms it is a 
criminal offence to fail 
to  register or disclose 
a pecuniary interest, 
with detail being 
provided in 8.9.41. 
 
8.9.42 refers to gifts 
and hospitality, 
supported by 8.9.43. 
 
 

integrity of local governance is 
maintained. 
8.9.40 Failure to register or disclose a 
disclosable pecuniary interest as set 
out in Table 1, is a criminal offence 
under the Localism Act 2011. 
8.9.41 Appendix B sets out the 
detailed provisions on registering and 
disclosing interests. If in doubt, 
Members should always seek advice 
from the Monitoring Officer. 
Gifts and hospitality 
8.9.42 As a Member: 
(a) I do not accept gifts or 
hospitality, irrespective of estimated 
value, which could give rise to real or 
substantive personal gain or a 
reasonable suspicion of influence on 
my part to show favour from persons 
seeking to acquire, develop or do 
business with the local authority or 
from persons who may apply to the 
local authority for any permission, 
licence or other significant advantage. 
(b) I register with the Monitoring 
Officer any gift or hospitality with an 
estimated value of at least £25 within 
28 days of its receipt. 
(c) I register with the Monitoring 
Officer any significant gift or 
hospitality that I have been offered 
but have refused to accept. 

P
age 43



 

255 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

(h) an instruction to the 
Monitoring Officer, or Parish 
Council (as appropriate), to 
exclude the Subject Member 
from the Council or Parish 
Council’s offices or other 
premises, except for meeting 
rooms as necessary for 
Council or Parish Council 
Committee meetings;  
(i) an instruction to the 
Monitoring Officer, or Parish 
Council (as appropriate), to 
apply the informal resolution 
process;  
(j) an instruction to the 
Monitoring Officer, or Parish 
Council (as appropriate), to 
issue a press release or other 
form of publicity; or  
(k) an instruction to the 
Monitoring Officer, or Parish 
Council (as appropriate), to 
restrict the Subject Member’s 
access to confidential or 
exempt information.  
8.12.2 The Standards 
Committee has no power to 
suspend or disqualify the 
Subject Member or to 
withdraw basic or special 
responsibility allowances.  

8.9.43 In order to protect their 
position and the reputation of the 
Council, Members should exercise 
caution in accepting any gifts or 
hospitality which are (or are 
reasonably believed to be) offered to 
them because they are a Member. 
The presumption should always be 
not to accept significant gifts or 
hospitality. However, there may be 
times when such a refusal may be 
difficult if it is seen as rudeness in 
which case it could be accepted and 
publicly registered. However, 
Members do not need to register gifts 
and hospitality which are not related 
to their role as a Member, such as 
Christmas gifts from friends and 
family. It is also important to note that 
it is appropriate to accept normal 
expenses and hospitality associated 
with the duties of a Member. The 
Monitoring Officer’s guidance should 
be sought in the event of any 
uncertainty. 

P
age 44



 

256 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

8.12.3 The Standards 
Committee may specify that 
any sanction takes effect 
immediately or takes effect at 
a later date and/or that the 
sanction be time limited. If the 
sanctions are not complied 
with within the timescale 
directed by the Standards 
Committee, the Monitoring 
Officer will report the fact to 
the chair of the Standards 
Committee, wherein further 
sanctions may be considered 
by the Standards Committee.  
8.12.4 When deciding whether 
to apply one or more sanctions 
referred to in section 8.12.1 
above, the Standards 
Committee will ensure that the 
application of any sanction is 
reasonable and proportionate 
to the Subject Member’s 
behaviour. In determining 
reasonableness, the 
Standards Committee will 
consider the following 
questions along with any other 
relevant circumstances or 
other factors specific to the 
local environment:  

P
age 45



 

257 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

(a) What was the Subject 
Member’s intention, and did 
they know that they were 
failing to follow the Council’s or 
Parish Council’s Members’ 
Code of Conduct?  
(b) Did the Subject Member 
receive advice from Officers 
before the incident and was 
that advice acted on in good 
faith?  
(c) Has there been a breach of 
trust?  
(d) Has there been financial 
impropriety, for example, 
improper expense claims or 
procedural irregularities?  
(e) What was the result / 
impact of failing to follow the 
Council’s or Parish Council’s 
Members’ Code of Conduct?  
(f) Was there an impact on 
others?  
(g) How serious was the 
incident?  
(h) Does the Subject Member 
accept that they were at fault?  
(i) Did the Subject Member 
apologise to the relevant 
persons?  
(j) Has the Subject Member 
previously been reprimanded 

P
age 46



 

258 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

or warned for similar 
misconduct?  
(k) Has the Subject Member 
previously breached the 
Council’s or Parish Council’s 
Members’ Code of Conduct?  
(l) Is there likely to be a 
repetition of the incident 

P
age 47



 

259 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

202.  8 – 
Standards 
Hearing 
Procedure 
Rules 

8.13 8.13 How and when are 
Standards Committee 
decisions and 
recommendations 
published? 8.13.1 Within five 
(5) working days of the 
Standard Committee’s 
announcement of its decision 
and recommendations, the 
Monitoring Officer will publish 
the name of the Subject 
Member and a summary of the 
Standards Committee’s 
decision and 
recommendations, and the 
reasons for the decision and 
recommendations, on the 
Council’s website.  
8.13.2 Within five (5) working 
days of the announcement of 
the Standards Committee’s 
decision, the Monitoring 
Officer will provide a full 
written decision and the 
reasons for the decision, 
including any 
recommendations, to:  
(a) the Subject Member;  
(b) the Complainant; and  
(c) the clerk to the Parish 
Council (if appropriate). 

The arrangements 
required under the 
Localism Act have 
been moved to a 
separate Procedure 
outside of the 
constitution, as 
referenced at new 8.6.2 
(URN 194, column 6). 
Existing 8.10 is 
therefore deleted from 
the constitution 
 

Appendix A – The Seven Principles 
Of Public Life 
The principles are: 
1. Selflessness 
Holders of public office should act 
solely in terms of the public interest. 
2. Integrity 
Holders of public office must avoid 
placing themselves under any 
obligation to people or organisations 
that might try inappropriately to 
influence them in their work. They 
should not act or take decisions in 
order to gain financial or other 
material benefits for themselves, their 
family, or their friends. They must 
disclose and resolve any interests 
and relationships. 
3. Objectivity 
Holders of public office must act and 
take decisions impartially, fairly and 
on merit, using the best evidence and 
without discrimination or bias. 
4. Accountability 
Holders of public office are 
accountable to the public for their 
decisions and actions and must 
submit themselves to the scrutiny 
necessary to ensure this. 
5. Openness 
Holders of public office should act 
and take decisions in an open and 

 
New Appendix A sets 
out the Nolan 
Principles 

P
age 48



 

260 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

transparent manner. Information 
should not be withheld from the public 
unless there are clear and lawful 
reasons for so doing. 
6. Honesty 
Holders of public office should be 
truthful. 
7. Leadership 
Holders of public office should exhibit 
these principles in their own 
behaviour. They should actively 
promote and robustly support the 
principles and be willing to challenge 
poor behaviour wherever it occurs. 

203.     New Appendix B 
reflects additional 
information in the Code 
of Conduct in relation 
to registering interests 
and the difference 
between disclosable 
pecuniary interest and 
other registerable 
interests 

APPENDIX B – REGISTERING 
INTERESTS  
1. Within 28 days of becoming a 
member or your re-election or re-
appointment to office you must 
register with the Monitoring Officer 
the interests which fall within the 
categories set out in Table 1 
(Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) 
which are as described in The 
Relevant Authorities (Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 
2012 .  
2. You should also register details 
of your other personal interests which 
fall within the categories set out in 
Table 2 (Other Registerable 
Interests). 

P
age 49



 

261 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” 
means an interest of yourself, or of 
your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the 
descriptions set out in Table 1 below. 
"Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you 
are living as husband or wife, or a 
person with whom you are living as if 
you are civil partners. 
3. You must ensure that your 
register of interests is kept up-to-date 
and within 28 days of becoming 
aware of any new interest, or of any 
change to a registered interest, notify 
the Monitoring Officer. 
4. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an 
interest which, if disclosed, could lead 
to the councillor, or a person 
connected with the councillor, being 
subject to violence or intimidation. 
5. Where you have a ‘sensitive 
interest’ you must notify the 
Monitoring Officer with the reasons 
why you believe it is a sensitive 
interest. If the Monitoring Officer 
agrees they will withhold the interest 
from the public register. 
Non participation in case of 
disclosable pecuniary interest 
6. Where a matter arises at a 
meeting which directly relates to one 

P
age 50



 

262 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

of your Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests as set out in Table 1, you 
must disclose the interest, not 
participate in any discussion or vote 
on the matter and must not remain in 
the room unless you have been 
granted a dispensation. If it is a 
‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to 
disclose the nature of the interest, 
just that you have an interest. 
Dispensation may be granted in 
limited circumstances, to enable you 
to participate and vote on a matter in 
which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest. 
7. Where you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest on a matter to be 
considered or is being considered by 
you as a Cabinet member in exercise 
of your executive function, you must 
notify the Monitoring Officer of the 
interest and must not take any steps 
or further steps in the matter apart 
from arranging for someone else to 
deal with it 
Disclosure of Other Registerable 
Interests 
8. Where a matter arises at a 
meeting which directly relates to the 
financial interest or wellbeing of one 
of your Other Registerable Interests 
(as set out in Table 2), you must 

P
age 51



 

263 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

disclose the interest. You may speak 
on the matter only if members of the 
public are also allowed to speak at 
the meeting but otherwise must not 
take part in any discussion or vote on 
the matter and must not remain in the 
room unless you have been granted a 
dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive 
interest’, you do not have to disclose 
the nature of the interest. 
Disclosure of Non-Registerable 
Interests 
9. Where a matter arises at a 
meeting which directly relates to your 
financial interest or well-being (and is 
not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
set out in Table 1) or a financial 
interest or well-being of a relative or 
close associate, you must disclose 
the interest. You may speak on the 
matter only if members of the public 
are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting. Otherwise you must not take 
part in any discussion or vote on the 
matter and must not remain in the 
room unless you have been granted a 
dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive 
interest’, you do not have to disclose 
the nature of the interest. 
10. Where a matter arises at a 
meeting which affects – 

P
age 52



 

264 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

a.  your own financial interest or well-
being; 
b.   a financial interest or well-being of 
a relative or close associate; or 
c.  a financial interest or wellbeing of 
a body included under Other 
Registrable Interests as set out in 
Table 2, 
you must disclose the interest. In 
order to determine whether you can 
remain in the meeting after disclosing 
your interest the following test should 
be applied 
11. Where a matter (referred to in 
paragraph 10 above) affects the 
financial interest or well-being: 
a. to a greater extent than it affects 
the financial interests of the majority 
of inhabitants of the ward affected by 
the decision; and 
b.  a reasonable member of the public 
knowing all the facts would believe 
that it would affect your view of the 
wider public interest, 
you may speak on the matter only if 
members of the public are also 
allowed to speak at the meeting. 
Otherwise you must not take part in 
any discussion or vote on the matter 
and must not remain in the room 
unless you have been granted a 
dispensation. 

P
age 53



 

265 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

12. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you 
do not have to disclose the nature of 
the interest. 
13. Where you have an Other 
Registerable Interest or Non-
Registerable Interest on a matter to 
be considered or is being considered 
by you as a Cabinet member in 
exercise of your executive function, 
you must notify the Monitoring Officer 
of the interest and must not take any 
steps or further steps in the matter 
apart from arranging for someone 
else to deal with it. 
  

204.     Table 1 and Table 2 at 
the end of the Code of 
Conduct are 
unchanged and not 
replicated within this 
document 

Table 1 and Table 2 unchanged 

 

 

P
age 54



 

266 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
Report of: Director of Legal and Governance Services 

 

Relevant Executive 
Member: 

The Mayor 

 

Submitted to: Standards Committee 

 

Date: 7 April 2025 

 

Title: Review of Gifts and Hospitality       

 

Report for: Information 

 

Status: Public 

 

Council Plan 
priority: 

Delivering Best Value 

 

Key decision: No 

Why: Not applicable 

 

Subject to call in?: No 

Why: It is not an Executive Report  

 
 

Executive summary  

The Monitoring Officer is required to review the Register of Gifts and Hospitality for 
Officers and Members on an annual basis and report details of the entries to the 
Standards Committee, to ensure that members and officers comply with the Members’ 
Code of Conduct and the Officers’ Code of Conduct, respectively.   

 
  

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



 

2 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
1. Purpose 

 
1.1 To present details of the Register of Gifts and Hospitality for Officers and Members for 

the Committee’s information. 
 
2. Recommendations  

 
2.1 That the Standards Committee 
 

 Notes the report and the declarations made. 
 
3. Rationale for the recommended decision(s) 

 
3.1 The Council’s Code of Conduct requires Councillors and Co-opted Members to declare 

and register the receipt of either gifts or hospitality with a value of £25 or more. 
 
 

 
4. Background and relevant information 

 
4.1 The Council’s Code of Conduct requires Councillors and Co-opted Members to declare 

and register the receipt of either gifts or hospitality with a value of £25 or more. The 
Monitoring Officer is required to establish and maintain a register in relation of gifts and 
hospitality and to produce a report to Standards Committee, on  an annual basis, 
outlining details any gifts and hospitality received by members and officers of the 
Council. 
 

4.2  Members register their interests in three ways: 
 

 By completing an annual declaration of financial and personal interests. These 
interests are published on the Council website under each individual councillor’s 
profile. Your Councillors | Middlesbrough Council 

 

 By making declarations at meetings where they have interest in a matter to be 
considered at that meeting.  Declarations made in such circumstances are 
recorded in the minutes of those meetings and are entered in the Register of 
Disclosures and General Notices.  

 

 By declaring and registering when receiving either gifts or hospitality with a value 
of £25 or more.  The declaration should include details of the gift or hospitality, 
its approximate value and details of the person or body that provided it. Although 
not a requirement, Members also occasionally register gifts or hospitality of lesser 
value.   

 
4.3 Declarations are entered in a Register of Gifts and Hospitality.  

 
Details of entries received from Members for the period January 2024 – December 2025 
are attached at Appendix A.  
 

Page 58

https://moderngov.middlesbrough.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1


 

3 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 Details of entries received from Officers for the period January 2024 – December 
 2025 are attached at Appendix B.  

 
 

 
5. Other potential alternative(s) and why these have not been recommended 

 
5.1 No other options were considered.   

 
6. Impact(s) of the recommended decision(s) 

 

Topic Impact 

Financial (including 
procurement and 
Social Value) 

There are no financial implications arising from the 
recommendations in this report. 

Legal  The Monitoring Officer is required to review the Register of 
Gifts and Hospitality for Officers and Members on an annual 
basis and report details of the entries to the Standards 
Committee. The Registers may be inspected by the public 
during normal office opening hours. 
 

Risk Reports will positively impact on risk of failure to achieve 
good governance by reducing the likelihood of it occurring. 
 

Human Rights, Public 
Sector Equality Duty 
and Community 
Cohesion 

No protected groups are affected by the decision. 

Climate Change / 
Environmental  

Not applicable. 

Children and Young 
People Cared for by 
the Authority and 
Care Leavers 

Not applicable. 

Data Protection Not applicable. 

 
Actions to be taken to implement the recommended decision(s) 
 

Action Responsible Officer Deadline 

                  

 
Appendices 
 

1 Appendix A – Members’ Register of Gifts and Hospitality 2023-2024 

2 Appendix B – Officers’ Register of Gifts and Hospitality 2023-2024 

3       

 
Background papers 
 

Page 59



 

4 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Body Report title Date 

                  

 
Contact: Charlotte Benjamin 
Email: charlotte_benjamin@middlesbrough.gov.uk  
  
 

 

Page 60



APPENDIX A 

 

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL 
REGISTER OF GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY 

MEMBERS 2024-2025 
 

INDEX 
 

REF. 
NO. 

COUNCILLOR ITEM RECEIVED FROM DATE 
RECEIVED 

CONSENT GIVEN 
 

YES NO 

1/24 Mayor – C Cooke Take That Hospitality Package– 24 
May 2024 £150 

Middlesbrough Football 
Club 

21/05/2024 YES  

2/24 Mayor – C Cooke Installation of The Baroness 
Chapman as Chancellor of Teesside 
University – 24 May 2024 £40 

Teesside University 24/04/2024 YES  

3/24 Mayor – C Cooke James Arthur Hospitality Package Middlesbrough Football 
Club 

06/06/24 YES  

4/24 Mayor – C Cooke Teesside University Graduation 
Dinner 2024 – 18 July 2024 £50 
 

Teesside University 14/06/24 YES  

5/24 Mayor – C Cooke 11th Annual Black History Youth 
Awards Dinner.  Approx £25.00 

 

Taste of Africa 4/10/24 YES  

 
 

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL 
REGISTER OF GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY 

OFFICERS 2024-2025 
 

REF. 
NO. 

OFFICER ITEM RECEIVED FROM DATE 
RECEIVED 

CONSENT GIVEN 
 

YES 
 

NO 
 

1/24 C Heaphy The Installation of 
Baroness Chapman 
23.5.24 £40 

Teesside University 24.5.24 YES  

2/24 M McPhee Take That Hospitality 
Package £150 

Middlesbrough Football 
Club 

24.5.24 YES  

3/24 C Heaphy Teesside University 
Graduation Dinner 2024 – 
18 July 2024 £50 

Teesside University 16.7.24 YES 
DID NOT 
ATTEND 

 

4/24 Claire Bell Middlesbrough Property 
and Construction Lunch at 
Acklam Hall £95 

Seven Architecture 11.9.24 YES  

5/24 Robert Brown Attendance at charity 
event  £60 

Eton 3.10.24 YES  

6/24 
 
 

Peter Brewer Attendance to 
Middlesbrough FC 
Foundation Dinner.  
Estimated Value of £50 

Middlesbrough Fountains 
Court 

15.11.24 YES  

7/24 Wendy Brown Hotel Chocolat – The 
Grand Wreath. £90 on 
the website 

Freeths LLP 9.12.24 YES  

P
age 63



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

8/24 Dale Metcalfe Chartered Institute of 
Waste Management 
North East Centre 
Christmas Meeting and 
Lunch  £36  
  

Archie Logan, Director, 
Storm Environmental
  

11.12.24 YES  

9/24 Peter Salt Chartered Institute of 
Waste Management 
North East Centre 
Christmas Meeting and 
Lunch      £36 

 Archie Logan, Director, 
Storm Environmental
  

11.12.24 YES  

 

P
age 64


	Agenda
	4 Minutes- Standards Committee - 14 October 2024
	5 Quarterly Update Report to Standards Committee
	6 Constitution Report on Standards/Code of Conduct
	8 - Roadmap 28.02.25

	7 Review of Gifts and Hospitality
	MEMBERS' GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY REGISTER 2024-2025
	OFFICERS' GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY REGISTER 2024-2025


